UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

- _ — — - - - —_— - - — —_ —_ - - —_ —_ X

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA SEALED
- v. - : SUPERSEDING
INDICTMENT

PATRICK LEWIS, : ,

a/k/a “P-Money,” S4 11 Cr. 912 (JFK)
DARREN MORRIS, :

a/k/a “Funny,”
MICHAEL CAMPRBELL,

a/k/a “Money Mike,"”
JAMAL FRAZER,

a/k/a “Thief,”
TYRIEK SKYFIELD,
ERIC BOOTH,

a/k/a “Easy,”
PRINCE WAREHAM,
ANTHONY FRANCIS,

a/k/a “Kutz,” and
RASHID TURNER,

Defendants.
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COUNT ONE
The Grand Jury charges:
1. From at least in or about 2009 up to and

including in or about 2012, in the Southern District of New York
and elsewhere, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” DARREN MORRIS,
a/k/a “Funny,” MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” JAMAL
FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a
“Eagy,” PRINCE WAREHAM, ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” and
RASHID TURNER, the defendants, unlawfully and knowingly did

combine, conspire, confederate, and agree together and with each



other to commit robbery, as that term is defined in Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (1), and would and did
thereby obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of
articles and commodities in commerce, as that term is defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(b) (3), to wit, LEWIS,
MORRIS, CAMPBELL, FRAZER, SKYFIELD, BOOTH, WAREHAM, FRANCIS,
TURNER, and others known and unknown, agreed to commit armed
robberies of suspected narcotics traffickers and others involved
in commercial activities that affected interstate commerce.
Overt Acts
2. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect

the illegal object thereof, the following overt acts, among
others, were committed in the Southern District of New York and
elsewhere:

a. On or about November 13, 20092, DARREN
MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” and MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,”
the defendants, attempted to rob at gunpoint suspected marijuana
dealers of marijuana and marijuana proceeds, in the vicinity of
Ely Avenue in the Bronx, New York.

b. In or about June 2010, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a
“pP-Money,” JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, and
PRINCE WAREHAM, the defendants, attempted to rob at gunpoint a
suspected marijuana dealer of marijuana and marijuana proceeds,

in the vicinity of Mansion Street in the Bronx, New York.
2



C. On or about July 28, 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK
SKYFIELD, and ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” the defendants,
robbed at gunpoint a suspected narcotics dealer, in the vicinity
of 1014 East 214" Street in the Bronx, New York, during which
robbery a quantity of cash, jewelry, and a white 2008 BMW were
taken.

d. In or about September 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” TYRIEK
SKYFIELD, and ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a “Easy,” the defendants, robbed
at gunpoint a marijuana dealer, in the vicinity of Seymour
Avenue and‘Hicks Street in the Bronx, New York, during which
robbery approximately 13 pounds of marijuana were taken.

e. on or about December 26, 2010, in the
Southern District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,”
and MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the defendants, robbed
at gunpoint a marijuana dealer, in the vicinity of 3527 Mickle
Avenue in the Bronx, New York, during which robbery the victim,
Patrick Woodburn, was shot and killed, and approximately 10
pounds of marijuana were taken.

£. In or about the Spring of 2011, in the
Southern District of New York, MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money
Mike,” the defendant, robbed at gunpoint a marijuana dealer, in

the vicinity of the Cooperative City housiﬁg development in the
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Bronx, New York, during which robbery a quantity of marijuana
was taken.
g. In or about the Summer of 2011, in the
Southern District of New Yotrk, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,”
the defendant, attempted to rob a suspected marijuana dealer of
marijuana, in the vicinity of the Throgs Neck section of the
Bronx, New York.
h. In or about the Summer of 2011, in the
Southern District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,”
DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” and MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money
Mike,” the defendants, attempted to rob at gunpoint suspected
marijuana purchasers of their payment for several pounds of
marijuana, in the vicinity of Baychester Avenue and Strang
Avenue in the Bronx, New York.
i. On or about the November 16, 2012, in the
Southern District of New York, RASHID TURNER, the defendant, -
robbed at gunpoint a drain cleaning business in the vicinity of
East Gun Hill Road in the Bronx, New York, during which robbery
approximately $3,000 was taken.
(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951.)
COUNT TWO
The Grand Jury further charges:
3. On or about November 13, 2009, in the Southern

District of New York, DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” and MICHAEL
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CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the defendants, unlawfully and
knowingly did attémpt to commit robbery, as that term is defined
in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951(b) (1), and would
thereby have obstructed, delayed, and affected commerce and the
movement of articles and commodities in commerce, as that term
is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (3),
to wit, MORRIS and CAMPBELL, attempted to rob at gunpoint
suspected marijuana dealers of marijuana and marijuana proceeds,
in the vicinity of Ely Avenﬁe in the Bronx, New York.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT THREE

The Grand Jury further charges:

4. On or about November 13, 2009, in the Southern
District of New York, DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” and MICHAEL
CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the defendants, during and in
relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted
in a court of the United States, namely, the attempted robbery
charged in Count Two of this Indictment, knowingly did use and
carry firearms, and, in furtherance of such crime, did possess
firearms, one of which was discharged.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (¢) (1) (&) (iii) and 2.)



COUNT FOUR

The Grand Jury further charges:

5. On or about November 13, 2009, in the Southern
District of New York, DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” the
defendant, after having been convicted in a court of a crime
punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year,
knowingly did possess in and affecting commerce a firearm, to
wit, a Maadi Company (Helwan) 9mm Luger pistol, which had been
shipped and transported in interstate and foreign commerce.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 922 (g) (1).)
COUNT FIVE

The Grand Jury further charges:

6. In or about June 2010, in the Southern District
of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a
“Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, and PRINCE WAREHAM, the defendantsgs,
unlawfully and knowingly did attempt to commit robbery, as that
term is defined in Titlé 18, United States Code, Section
1951 (b) (1), and would thereby have obstructed, delayed, and
affected commerce and the movement of articles and commodities
in commerce, as that term is defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1951(b) (3), to wit, LEWIS, FRAZER, SKYFIELD, and

WAREHAM attempted to rob at gunpoint a suspected marijuana



dealer of marijuana and marijuana proceeds, in the vicinity of
Mansion Street in the Bronx, New York.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)
COUNT SIX
The Grand Jury further charges:
7. In or about June 2010, in the Southern District
of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a
“Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, and PRINCE WAREHAM, the defendants,
during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may
be prosecuted in a court of the United States, namely, the
attempted robbery charged in Count Five of this Indictment,
knowingly did use and carry a firearm, and, in furtherance of
such crime, did possess a firearm, and did aid and abet the use,
carrying and possession of a firearm, to wit, a handgun, which
was discharged.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (c) (1) (7) (1ii) and 2.)

. COUNT SEVEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

8. On or about July 28, 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK
SKYFIELD, and ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” the defendants, and
others known and unknown, unlawfully and knowingly did commit

robbery, as that term is defined in Title 18, United States



Code, Section 1951(b) (1), and did thereby obstruct, delay, and
affect commerce and the movement of articles and commodities in
commerce, as that term is defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1951 (b) (3), to wit, FRAZER, SKYFIELD, and FRANCIS
robbed at gunpoint a suspected narcotics dealer, in the vicinity
of 1014 East 214™ Street in the Bronx, New York, during which
robbery a quantity of cash, jewelry, and a white 2008 BMW were
taken.

(Title'18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT EIGHT

The Grand Jury further charges:

9. On or about July 28, 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief," TYRIEK
SKYFIELD, and ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” the defendants,
knowingly and with the intent to cause death and serious bodily
harm, did take a motor vehicle that had been transported,
shipped, and received in interstate and foreign commerce, to
wit, a white 2008 BMW, from the person and presence of another
by force and violence and by intimidation.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2119 and 2.)
COUNT NINE
The Grand Jury further charges:
10. On or about July 28, 2010, in the Southern

District of New York, JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK
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SKYFIELD, and ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” the defendants,
during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may
be prosecuted in a court of the United States, namely, the
robbery charged in Count Seven and the carjacking charged in
Count Eight of this Indictment, knowingly did use and carry
firearms, and, in furtherance of such crime, did possess
firearms, and did aid and abet the use, carrying and possession
of firearms, to wit, handguns, at least one of which was
brandished.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (¢) (1) (A) (ii), 924 (c) (1) (C) (i), and 2.)

COUNT TEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

11. In or about September 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” TYRIEK
SKYFIELD, and ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a “Easy,” the defendants,
unlawfully and knowingly did commit robbery, as that term is
defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (1), and
did therxeby obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the
movement of articles and commodities in commerce, as that term
is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (3),
to wit, LEWIS, SKYFIELD, and BOOTH robbed at gunpoint a

marijuana dealer, in the vicinity of Seymour Avenue



and Hicks Street in the Bronx, New York, during which robbery
approximately 13 pounds of marijuana were taken.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT ELEVEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

12. In or about September 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” TYRIEK
SKYFIELD, and ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a “Easy,” the defendants, during
and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be
prosecuted in a court of the United States, namely, the robbery
charged in Count Ten of this Indictment, knowingly did use and
carry firearms, and, in furtherance of such crime, did possess
firearms, and did aid and abet the use, carrying and possession
of firearms, to wit, handguns, which were brandished.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (¢) (1) (A) (idi), 924(c) (1) (C) (i), and 2.)

COUNT TWELVE

The Grand Jury further charges:

13. On or about December 26, 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” and
MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the defendants, unlawfully
and knowingly did commit robbery, as that term is defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (1), and did

thereby obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the movement of
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articles and commodities in commerce, as that term is defined in
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (3), to wit, LEWIS
and CAMPBELL robbed at gunpoint a marijuana dealer, in the
vicinity‘of 3527 Mickle Avenue in the Bronx, New York, during
which robbery the victim, Patrick Woodburn, was shot and killed
and approximately 10 pounds of marijuana were taken.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT THIRTEEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

14. On or about December 26, 2010, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” and
MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the defendants, during and
in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be
prosecuted in a court of the United States, namely, the rdbbery
charged in Count Twelve of this Indictment, knowingly did use
and carry a firearm, and, in furtherance of such crime, did
possess a firearm, and did aid and abet the use, carrying and
possession of a firearm, to wit, a handgun, which was
discharged.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (c) (1) (A) (iidi), 924 (c) (1) (C) (i), and 2.)

COUNT FOURTEEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

15. On or about December 26, 2010, in the Southern
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District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” and
MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the defendants, willfully
and knowingly, during and in relation to a crime of violence for
which they may be prosecuted in a court of the United States,
namely, the robbery charged in Count Twelve of this Indictment,
did use and carry a firearm, and, in furtherance of such crime,
did possess a firearm, and did aid and abet the use, carrying,
and possession of a firearm, and in the course of that crime did
cause the death of a person through the use of a firearm, which
killing is murder as defined in Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1111(a), to wit, LEWIS and CAMPBELL robbed at gunpoint a
marijuana dealer, in the vicinity of 3527 Mickle Avenue in the
‘Bronx, New York, during which robbery the victim, Patrick
Woodburn, was shot and killed and approximately 10 pounds of
marijuana were taken.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 924 (3) (1) and 2.)

COUNT FIFTEEN

The United States Attorney further charges:

16. In or about the Spring of 2011, in the Southern
District of New York, MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the
defendant, unlawfully and knowingly did commit robbery, as that
term is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section
1951 (b) (1), and did thereby obstruct, delay, and affect commerce

and the movement of articles and commodities in commerce, as
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that term is defined in Title 18, United Stateg Code, Section
1951 (b) (3), to wit, CAMPBELL robbed at gunpoint a marijuana
dealer, in the vicinity of the Cooperative City housing
development in the Bronx, New York, during which robbery a
quantity of marijuana was taken.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT SIXTEEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

17. In or about the Spring of 2011, in the Southern
District of New York, MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” the
defendant, during and in relation to a crime of violence for
which he may be prosecuted in a court of the United States,
namely, the robbery charged in Count Fifteen of this Indictment,
knowingly did use and carry a firearm, and, in furtherance of
such crime, did possess a firearm, and did aid and abet the use,
carrying and possession of a firearm, to wit, a handgun, which
was brandished.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (¢) (1) (n) (11), 924 (c) (1) (C)Y (i), and 2.)

COUNT SEVENTEEN

The Grand Jury further charges:
18. In or about the Summer of 2011, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” the

defendant, unlawfully and knowingly did attempt to commit
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robbery, as that germ ig defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1951 (b) (1), and would thereby have obstructed,
delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and
commodities in commerce, as that term is defined in Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1951(b) (3), to wit, LEWIS attempted
to rob a suspected marijuana dealer of marijuana, in the
vicinity of the Throgs Neck section of the Bronx, New York.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT EIGHTEEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

19. In or about the Summer of 2011, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” the
defendant, during and in relation to a crime of violence for
which he may be prosecuted in a court of the United States,
namely, the attempted robbery charged in Count Seventeen of this
Indictment, knowingly did use and carry a firearm, and, in
furtherance of such crime, did possess a firearm, and did aid
and abet the use, carrying and possession of a firearm, to wit,
a handgun.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (¢) (1) (A) (1), 924(c) (1) (C) (1), and 2.)

COUNT NINETEEN

The Grand Jury further charges:

20. 1In or about the Summer of 2011, in the Southern
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District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” DARREN
MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” and MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,"”
the defendants, unlawfully and knowingly did attempt to commit
robbery, as that term is defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1951 (b) (1), and would thereby have obstructed,
delayed, and affected commerce and the movement of articles and
commodities in commerce, as that term is defined in Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1951(b) (3), to wit, LEWIS, MORRIS,
and CAMPBELL attempted to rob at gunpoint suspected marijuana
purchasers of their payment for several pounds of marijuana, in
the vicinity of Baychester Avenue and Strang Avenue in the
Bronx, New York.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1951 and 2.)

COUNT TWENTY

The Grand Jury further charges:

21. In or about the Summer of 2011, in the Southern
District of New York, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” DARREN
MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” and MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,”
the defendants, during and in relation to a crime of violence
for which they may be prosecuted in a court of the United
States, namely, the attempted robbery charged in Count Nineteen
of this Indictment, knowingly did use and carry firearms, and,

in furtherance of such crime, did possess firearms, and did aid
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and abet the use, carrying and possession of firearms, to wit,
handguns, at least one of which was discharged.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (e) (1) (A) (iii), 924 (c) (1) (C) (1), and 2.)

COUNT TWENTY-ONE

22. On or about the November 16, 2012, in the
Southern District of New York, RASHID TURNER, the defendant,
unlawfully and knowingly did commit robbery, as that term is
defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (1), and
did thereby obstruct, delay, and affect commerce and the
movement of articles and commodities in commerce, as that term
ig defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951 (b) (3),
to wit, TURNER robbed at gunpoint a drain cleaning business in
the vicinity of East Gun Hill Road in the Bronx, New York,
during which robbery approximately $3,000 was taken.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 1951.)

COUNT TWENTY-TWO

23. On or about November 16, 2012, in the Southern
District of New York and elsewhere, RASHID TURNER, the
defendant, during and in relation to a crime of violence for
which he may be prosecuted in a court of the United States,
namely, the robbery charged in Count Twenty-One of this
Indictment, knowingly did use and carry firearms, and, in

furtherance of such crime, did possess firearms, and did aid and
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abet the use, carrying and possession of firearms, to wit,
handguns which were brandished.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections
924 (c) (1) (A) (ii) and 2.)

COUNT TWENTY-THREE

24. On or about November 16, 2012, in the Southern
District Qf New York, RASHID TURNER, the defendant, after having
been convicted in a court of a crime punishable by imprisonment
for a term exceeding one year, knowingly did possess in and
affecting commerce a firearm, to wit, a loaded .357 caliber
semi-automatic pistol manufactured by Taurus, which had been
shipped and transported in interstate and foreign commerce.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 922 (g) (1).)

COUNT TWENTY-FOUR

The Grand Jury further charges:

25. From at least in or about 2009 up to and
including in or about September 2011, in the Southern District
of New York and elsewhere, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,”
DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money
Mike,” JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, ERIC BOOTH,
a/k/a “Easy,” PRINCE WAREHAM, ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” and
RASHID TURNER, the defendants, and others known and unknown,

intentionally and knowingly did combine, conspire, confederate,
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and agree together and with each other to violate the narcotics
laws of the United States.

26. It was a part and an object of the conspiracy
that PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a
“Funny,” MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” JAMAL FRAZER,
a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a “Easy,” PRINCE
WAREHAM, ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” and RASHID TURNER, the
defendants, and others known and unknown, would and did
distribute and possess with intent to distribute a controlled
gsubstance, in violation of 21 U.S.C. & 841 (a) (1).

27. The controlled substance involved in the offense
was marijuana, in violation of Title 21, United States Code,
Section 841 (b) (1) (D).

(Title 21, United States Code, Section 846.)

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

28. As a result of committing the robbery offenses
alleged in Counts One, Two, Five, Seven, Ten, Twelve, Fifteen,
Seventeen, Nineteen, and Twenty-One of this Indictment, PATRICK
LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a “Funny,” MICHAEL
CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” JAMAL FRAZER, a/k/a “Thief,6”
TYRIEK SKYFIELD, ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a “Easy,” PRINCE WAREHAM,
ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” and RASHID TURNER, the
defendants, shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to 18

U.S.C. § 981 (a) (1) (C), and 28 U.S.C. § 2461, all property, real
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and personal, that constitutes or is derived from proceeds
traceable to the commission of the offenses alleged in those
counts.

29. As a result of committing the controlled
substance offense alleged in Count Twenty-Four of this
Indictment, PATRICK LEWIS, a/k/a “P-Money,” DARREN MORRIS, a/k/a
“Funny,” MICHAEL CAMPBELL, a/k/a “Money Mike,” JAMAL FRAZER,
a/k/a “Thief,” TYRIEK SKYFIELD, ERIC BOOTH, a/k/a “Easy,” PRINCE
WAREHAM, ANTHONY FRANCIS, a/k/a “Kutz,” and RASHID TURNER, the
defendants, shall forfeit to the United States pursuant to Title
21, United States Code, Section 853, any and all property
constituting or derived from any proceeds the defendants
obtained directly or indirectly as a result of the said
violation and any and all property that constitutes or is
derived from proceeds traceable to the commission of the
violation alleged in Count Twenty-Four of this Indictment.

Substitute Asset Provision

30. If any of the property described above as being
subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission of the
defendants:

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due
diligence;
(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited

with, a third person;
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(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of
the Court;

(d) has been substantially diminished in value;
or

(e) has been commingled with other property which
cannot be subdivided without difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §
981, 21 U.S.C. § 853 (p), and 28 U.S.C. § 2461, to seek
forfeiture of any other property of said defendants up to the
value of the forfeitable property.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 981; Title 21, United
States Code, Section 853; and Title 28, United States Code,
Section 2461.)

”\Dﬁ/@/ @qam/ul\

PREET BHARARA ] (5
United States Attorney
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